1983

Ruth S. Hiltsey, Personally And Ruth S. Hiltsey, Administratrix of the Estate of Milton J. Hiltsey, aka H.J. Hiltsey v. Hallalene M. Ryder : Brief of Appellant

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This is a case filed by plaintiff on her own behalf and as the administratrix of her husband's estate, against the defendant, (1) asserting rights as to certain monies disposed of by decedent prior to his death which were taken from a bank account(Ex.5P) held, at the time of closing the account,in the joint names of the decedent, the plaintiff and the defendant; and (2) to award one savings account(Ex.7P) and two savings

certificates(Ex.3P and 4P) to plaintiff even though held in the joint names of decedent and defendant.

DISPOSITION OF CASE BY LOWER COURT

The case was tried without a jury and the judgment was rendered in several parts. The Court rendered judgment in favor of the plaintiff in her own right against defendant for the sum of \$4,924.66 holding that such sum represented plaintiff's share as a tenant in common in the bank account(Ex.5P) closed by decedent prior to his death.(R.97-98) The Court further ordered defendant to pay the personal representative of Etta Wood (a non-party) the sum of \$10,000.00 representing the latter's contribution to such account(Ex.5P)(R.99,¶2). The Court further ordered defendant to pay to the personal representative of the estate of Etta Wood, all monies on deposit in a money market certificate at American Savings and Loan Association(Ex.4P), and all monies on deposit in a money market certificate at Prudential Federal Savings and Loan Association(Ex.3P)(R.99,¶3&4). The court further held that defendant was entitled to the monies held in the American Savings and Loan Association savings passbook(Ex.7P)(R.93¶23).

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendant-Appellant seeks an order reversing the Judgment and orders found in the Judgment of the Court as a matter

of law, and awarding defendant the amounts held in the money market certificates(Ex.3P and 4P).

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Plaintiff is the surviving wife of Milton J. Hiltzley (hereinafter decedent) who died on August 26, 1981. Plaintiff was appointed the personal representative of decedent's estate on October 7, 1981. Plaintiff brought this action in her representative capacity as personal representative, and on her own behalf making claim against the defendant of fraud, alienation of affections , undue influence, and for diversion by defendant of assets in which plaintiff had an interest as the wife of deceased or his personal representative.(R.3-5).

Decedent was a Pastor of the Baptist faith, ministering in Salt Lake City, Utah for 20 years prior to his death, first at the Bethel Baptist Church for three years and then the First Baptist Church of Holladay for the last seventeen years (R.149).

The decedent, the plaintiff and the defendant had a close, continuous and friendly relationship as friends, neighbors and church associates. For the past 20 years, defendant had been an active member of the churches over which decedent ministered, and served as clerk or secretary of the First Baptist Church of Holladay, and was one of its incorporators. (R.87, Findings ¶3-4).

Plaintiff and decedent were neighbors of the defendant, they visited and ate in each others homes together frequently, traveled together, shared a garden and worked together to keep the church going. (R.87-88, Findings ¶5).

Defendant made donations to deceased directly and deceased paid various expenses for defendant over the years. (R.88, Findings ¶6) Defendant did ironing for decedent, cut his hair and made gifts to the decedent and plaintiff (R.432-434).

The parties were such close friends that they even slept in the same room together while traveling. (R.195-196).

At the time of decedent's death, the passbook account(Ex.7P), and the two money market certificates (Ex.3P and 4P) were held in the joint names of M.J. Hiltzley (decedent) and Hallalene (or H.M.) Ryder (defendant).

The plaintiff had made no deposit to or withdrawal from these certificates and passbook account, and had no knowledge of them until shortly after decedent's death when she found them in the home, in a hollowed-out place under the fireplace in the study. (R.57-61, and 185-186).

LEGAL ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE COURT ERRED IN RENDERING JUDGMENT IN FAVOR OF THE ESTATE OF ETTA WOOD, A NON-PARTY.

The judgment of the trial court is that neither plaintiff nor defendant is entitled to the monies represented or evidenced by the money market certificates in American Savings and Loan Association #11-013277-9(Ex.4P) and Prudential Federal Savings and Loan Association #003-300,1723-1(Ex.3P) and that the monies in those two accounts, plus an additional \$10,000.00 used by the decedent as his contribution to the down payment on the condominium purchased by the defendant and the decedent in their joint names with rights of survivorship, should be awarded and paid over to Etta Wood(R.98-99). (Etta Wood was the sister of the decedent who predeceased him). Said portions of the Judgment order the defendant to pay sums to Etta Woods' personal representative. Etta Wood was not, nor was her personal representative, a party to the action. No summons or complaint was ever served upon her or her personal representative, nor were any pleadings or claims at trial made by either litigant for or against Etta Wood or her estate.

A. Judgment May Not be Rendered in Favor of a Non-Party to the Litigation.

It is an elementary common law principle that a judgment may not be rendered in favor of one not a party to the action or proceeding. See 49 C.J.S. Judgments, §28, pp. 68-71; 46 Am Jur 2d, Judgments, §86; Houser v. Smith, et al, 19 U. 150, 56 P.683(1889); In re Pingrees Estate, 82 U. 437, 25 P. 2d 937, 90 ALR. 96 (1933); Tanner v. Provo Reservoir Co., 99 U. 158, 103 P.

2d 134 (1940); McDonnell v. Southern Pacific Company, et al., 78 Ariz. 10, 281 P. 2d 792 (1955); Fazzi v. Peters, 440 P. 2d 242, 68 Cal. Reprtr. 170, 68 C. 2d 590 (1968); Ex-parte Wren, 308 P. 2d 329, 48 C. 2d 159; Hurt v. Jones, 304 P. 2d 786, 147 C.A. 2d 164 (1957); In re Ferrero's Estate, 298 P. 2d 604, 142 C.A. 2d 473 (1956); Hutchinson v. California Trust Co. 111 P. 2d 401, 41 C.A. 2d 571 (1941); Greco v. Foster, 268 P. 2d 215, (Okla 1954); Anita Ditch Co. vs. Turner, 389 P. 2d 1018 (Wyo 1964); Ridley v. Vander Boegh, 511 P. 2d 273, 95 Ida 456 (1973); Windsor v. Powell, 497 P. 2d 292, 209 Kan. 292 (1972); Williams v. City of Valdez, 603 P. 2d 483, appeal after removed 624 P. 2d 820 (1979); and United States v. Union P.R. Co., 98 US 569, 24 L Ed 143.

The law in Utah is in agreement with this principle. As early as 1889 in the case of Houser v. Smith, supra, our Supreme Court considered the question of whether the trial court had the right to dispose of and adjudicate property rights of persons who were not parties to the case but strangers to the record. In that case, plaintiff sought to quiet title and recover possession of land pursuant to a decree entered in an earlier, but different action, wherein defendants Morgan and Carlston were not parties.

The trial court held that title was still in Morgan, that the earlier decree declaring the Smith to Morgan deed and the Morgan to Carlston mortgage void, was itself of no force or

effect because Morgan and Carlston were not parties to the suit where such rights were litigated. In affirming, the Utah Supreme Court said:

The defendants Morgan and Carlston were strangers to the proceeding under which the decree was obtained. The property was wrongfully and illegally decreed to belong to another party, without the owners being made parties to the action, or having any opportunity to be heard in Court to defend the title thereto.

* * *

On the face of the record as shown, the decree in the case of Smith against Smith, insofar as it declares said deed and mortgage void, is wholly and absolutely void, and was rendered without jurisdiction over the persons or property of said Morgan and Carlston. It is not a question of collateral attack upon the judgment. The record presents a case where the judgment is shown to be absolutely void, and rendered against persons who were not before the court, and over whom the court had no jurisdiction. Courts have no right to dispose of and adjudicate upon the property rights of persons who are not parties to the case, and who are total strangers to the record. Van Fleet, Coll. attach, \$16,494; Mosby v. Gisborn, 54 Pac. 121, 17 Utah_____. (Emphasis added)

The same principal was again applied in the case of Tanner v. Provo Reservoir Co., supra, wherein the court stated at page 135 of the opinion,

The Power Company is not a party to this suit but it was a party to No. 2888 Civil and is bound by that Decree....A decree in this suit cannot alter the rights and duties of the Power Company or bind it in any way whatever. (Emphasis added).

In the case of McDonnell v. Southern Pacific Company, supra, the trial court, in an action to quiet title to real property, rendered judgment finding a non-party to be the owner

in fee simple. On appeal, the Supreme Court of Arizona reversed, stating:

A court has no jurisdiction to render a judgment in favor of one not a party to the suit. 30 Am Jur, Judgments §35; 49 C.J.S., Judgments §28; Bachman v. Sepulveda, 39 Cal. 688; Dunlap v. Southerlin, 63 Tex. 38; Maurer v. International Re Insurance Corp., Del., 95 A. 2d 827. Parties cannot be brought into court and a valid judgment rendered for or against them by merely including them in the judgment. As was well said in Dunlap v. Southerlin, supra;

Courts have no more power, until their action is called into exercise by some kind of pleading to render a judgment in favor of any person than they have to render judgment against a person until he has been brought within the jurisdiction of the court in some method recognized by law as sufficient;...

In the case of Hutchinson v. California Trust Company, supra, the plaintiff sued the special administrator of his deceased wife's estate to have determined the ownership of a bank account. The plaintiff sought a declaration that the money in the account was community property, not the deceased's separate property.

The trial court determined that the bank account was a gift to the deceased wife, therefore not community property, and ordered the account to be distributed equally between the sons of the plaintiff and deceased wife according to an agreement executed prior to probate.

In referring the holding of the trial court, the appellate court stated, at page 403:

An additional reason for holding that the court erred

in ordering that the entire estate be distributed equally to Peter and Tony Hutchinson in accordance with the agreement with their father may be found in the fact that Peter and Tony Hutchinson are not parties to the present action, which was commenced for the purpose of determining ownership of the bank account as between plaintiff and defendant administrator. A judgment may not be rendered either against or in favor of one who is not a party to the action. (Emphasis added)

In addition to the above, a review of Rule 19(b) Utah Rules of Civil Procedure shows the error of the trial court in this matter.

(b) Effect of failure to join. When persons who are not indispensable, but who ought to be parties if complete relief is to be accorded between those already parties, have not been made parties and are subject to the jurisdiction of the court as to service of process, the court shall order them summoned to appear in the action. The court in its discretion may proceed in the action without making such persons parties, if its jurisdiction over them can be acquired only by their consent or voluntary appearance; but the judgment rendered therein does not affect the rights or liabilities of absent persons. (Emphasis added)

B. Trial Courts' Findings that Decedent Held Thirty Thousand Dollars (\$30,000.00) in Trust for Etta Wood Based upon Insufficient Evidence and Manifest Speculation.

The trial court's judgment, ordering defendant-appellant to pay the personal representative of Etta Wood the sum of \$10,000.00 representing funds withdrawn from a passbook account(ex.5P) and used by the decedent in the down payment on the purchase of the condominium of the defendant, and further ordering the defendant-appellant to pay over to the personal representative of the estate of Etta Wood all sums on deposit in

certificate #11-013277-9 at American Savings and Loan(Ex.4P) and all sums in certificate #003-300723-6 at Prudential Federal Savings and Loan(Ex.3P) was based upon the finding of the trial court set forth in paragraph 24 of the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law(R.94) as follows:

It seems clear the decedent must be considered as having received the \$30,000.00 from Etta Wood in trust for her and this money was not his money to invest as he did and did not become his upon her death to give away or use for his own purposes.

The sum total of all the evidence submitted to the court on this matter is represented by certain statements made by the defendant on cross-examination and certain entries contained in the ledger, Exhibit 10-P.

After testifying that the decedent had inherited \$21,000.00 from his brother (R.210-211), the following questions and answers appear in the transcript(R.212) beginning on line 2.

Q. Did Mr. Hiltley also have a sister who lived in New Mexico?

A. Yes.

Q. And did that sister die prior to the time of your husband's death?

A. About '80.

Q. And did she leave to Mr. Hiltley a sum of money?

A. Yes.

Q. And how much money was that?

A. Well, I can't--here again, I can't say just what because my husband never told me very much. But as far as I can figure out, Etta, that is my sister-in-law, when she came up to live with us, she was in and out of the hospital quite a number of times 'cause she had lung cancer and this time she was in the hospital and I think my husband said that there was about four or five thousands in debt. Now, whether that came out of the \$20,000.00 that he inherited I don't know.

(Emphasis added)

The only other evidence on the matter is Exhibit P-10 where on page 253 the following notations are shown:

10/5/79 received money from Etta's account transferred to Salt Lake from Albuquerque, N.M.-- \$30,000.00 plus 314--a shortage of \$8.+-

The AM Savings will check the shortage for me--placed \$10,000.00 in savings passbook, placed \$10,000.00 in money market at AM Savings,
\$10,000.00 in money market @ PFS.

As stated above neither party introduced the above testimony or exhibit for the purposes of showing how decedent acquired the funds or what his obligations were regarding those funds, or what ownership he had in the funds. However, from such scanty evidence, the court made the findings represented in paragraph 24 of the Findings of Fact, (R.94, ¶24 Findings) referred to above.

Admittedly, presumptions form an important part of the law of evidence generally. However, defendant-appellant submits that to presume or infer from such evidence as there is in this case, as the trial court did, that (1) the decedent held \$30,000 in trust for Etta Wood (R.89-92, Findings ¶15-19) and (2) the \$30,000.00 is traceable into the certificates and accounts in question, is nothing more than manifest conjecture and speculation.

A reading of the trial court's findings relative to these matters only points out the uncertainty of the entire decision.

Referring to Exhibit 4P, the money market certificate at American Savings, the trial court said:

Although no evidence at the trial was given tracing the history of the account, the account, on February 14, 1980 was shown as \$12,000.00. From Exhibit 10-P it would appear that \$10,000.00 from Etta Wood's account received by decedent on October 5, 1979 was placed in this American Savings account, and the only inference that can be drawn is that the initial \$10,000.00 deposit came from Etta's transferred funds. (R.92, Findings ¶18). (Emphasis added)

In paragraph 18 of the trial court's Findings, (R.92) the court attempts to trace Exhibit 3P back to Etta Wood's funds but, from the evidence can only trace it back to the opening of account No. 715-100-837-3 opened February 22, 1980 and closed August 28, 1980 by withdrawal of \$16,161.29. Yet from the entry on page 253 Exhibit 10P, upon which the court bases its findings, the deposit of \$10,000.00 appears to have been made "10/5/79". There was no tracing of the account back to 10/5/79. No evidence was submitted to show how \$10,000.00 deposited on 10/5/79 had grown to \$16,161.29 within a few months. The trial court, however, finds in paragraph 19 of the Findings (R.92) that "Court finds that a substantial portion, if not all, of Account No. 715-101422-2 (Ex.3P) is the Etta Wood original \$10,000.00 deposit and earnings thereon held as trustee for Etta Wood."

The court has presumed from the entry on page 253 of Exhibit 10P, that the decedent held Etta's monies for her in trust. It then presumes, on the basis of even less certain

evidence, that such monies were deposited into the accounts or certificates before the court.

The Utah Supreme Court recognized the basic principle that a presumption cannot be based upon a presumption as early as 1916 in Denver & R.G.R. Co. v. Ashton-Whyte-Skillicorn Co., 49 Utah 82, 162 Pac. 83 (1916), wherein this Court held:

As the record now stands, however, the presumption of defendant's negligence must be based upon another presumption, namely that the cars were in the actual control and management of the defendant when they escaped. This would result in basing one presumption upon another which would be violation of an elementary rule of evidence Id. at 85.

The same rule is well stated in Splinter v. City of Nampa, 74 Idaho 1, 10, 256 P. 2d 215, 220 (1953).

Circumstantial evidence is competent to establish negligence and proximate cause. Facts, which are essential to a liability for negligence, may be inferred upon circumstances which are established by evidence. But, where circumstantial evidence is relied upon, the circumstances must be proved, and not themselves be left to presumption or inference. (Citation.) This court has held that inference cannot be based upon inference, nor presumption on presumption. (Citations.)

The underlying principle applicable here is that a verdict cannot rest on conjecture; that where a party seeks to establish a liability by circumstantial evidence, he must establish circumstances of such nature and so related to each other that his theory of liability is the more reasonable conclusion to be drawn therefrom, and that where the proven facts are equally consistent with the absence, as with the existence, of negligence on the part of defendant, the plaintiff has not carried the burden of proof and cannot recover. (Citations.) (Emphasis added.)

A presumption or inference of fact must not be drawn from premises which are uncertain, but must be founded on facts

established by direct evidence. In this respect, this Court held in Lindsay v. Gibbons and Reed, 27 Utah 2d 419, 497 P. 2d 28 (1972) that:

(A) finding of causation cannot be predicated on mere speculation or conjecture, and the matter must be withdrawn from the jury's consideration, unless there is evidence from which the inference may reasonably be drawn that the injury suffered was caused by the negligent act of the defendant. (Milligan v. Capitol Furniture Co., 8 Utah 2d 383, 387, 335 P. 2d 619 (1959).)

POINT II

DEFENDANT-APPELLANT IS ENTITLED TO JUDGMENT AS
A MATTER OF LAW, ON ALL ISSUES.

A. The Trial Court Erred in its Application of the Law as to Ownership of Joint Account During Lifetime.

The trial court found that the American Savings and Loan Association savings account #1-048466 (Ex. 5-P) which had been closed by decedent twenty-two (22) months before his death, was an account held by tenants in common. Further the trial court determined that

... the proceeds should be divided equitably between the plaintiff and defendant as follows:
\$10,000.00 to be held for the account of Etta Wood and subject to probate of her estate; \$16,150.68 allocated to defendant as her contribution to the account;
\$9,849.32 divided between the other tenants in common, Ruth Hiltzley and deceased (sic defendant) each having an interest of \$4,924.66. The balance of the account \$1,481.21, the deceased distributed in the manner determined by him to be equitable. (R.90, Findings ¶16(1)(d)).

The trial court apparently "bought" the argument of plaintiff that once a tenant in common account was established.

the interest of one co-tenant could not be destroyed by the action of the other co-tenant. Said savings account was closed by decedent on October 29, 1979, twenty-two months prior to his death, by a withdrawal of the monies therein and used as part of the down payment on the condominium purchased by the defendant and decedent in their joint names. (R.90, Findings ¶16(a)).

It is important to note, however, that although the trial court made a finding that the account was a "tenancy in common" account, and awarded plaintiff \$4,924.66 (R.97) as her share of the account, yet the court allowed the decedent to distribute \$1,481.21 of the account "in the manner determined by him to equitable". (R.91, Findings ¶16(d)).

The law relative to ownership of a joint account during the lifetime of the parties thereto is set forth in §75-6-103 (1), Utah Code Annotated, 1953 as amended, which states:

A joint account belongs, during the lifetime of all parties, to the parties in proportion to the net contributions by each to the sums on deposit, unless there is clear and convincing evidence of a different intent.

§75-6-101 (6), Utah Code Annotated, 1953 as amended, defines net contribution as follows:

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