1983

**Ruth S. Hiltsey, Personally And Ruth S. Hiltsey, Administratrix of the Estate of Milton J. Hiltsey, aka H.J. Hiltsey v. Hallalene M. Ryder : Respondent's Brief**

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE FINDINGS OF THE COURT ARE SUPPORTED BY SUBSTANTIAL AND UNCONTRADICTED EVIDENCE.

POINT II

DEFENDANT NOW HAS COLOR OF TITLE TO ASSETS OF PLAINTIFF AND ESTATE OF ETTA WOOD.

POINT III

DEFENDANT IS BARRED FROM ATTEMPTING TO RELITIGATE THE OWNERSHIP OF THE ASSETS RECEIVED FROM M. J. HILTSLEY BY DOCTRINE OF EQUITABLE ESTOPPEL.

POINT I

THE FINDINGS OF THE COURT ARE SUPPORTED BY SUBSTANTIAL AND UNCONTRADICTED EVIDENCE.

The Court carefully examined the several accounts in which M. J. Hiltzley, Ruth Hiltzley, and H. M. Ryder appeared to have an interest, and Plaintiff submits that his analysis is in every respect accurate and supported by the exhibits and the other evidence. There was no evidence presented contrary to the findings of the Court or no document which contradicted his analysis.

Exhibit 5-P is American Savings & Loan passbook, Account No. 104586, and contains the record of funds used to buy defendant's car. It shows on October 5, 1979 a deposit of \$1,000.00, which exhibit 10 indicates deceased Hiltzley recorded in a separate passbook. It then contains the balance sheet with the total of \$37,379.11.

Exhibit 40-D supplied by Defendant shows the sums that she contributed to the purchase price of the condominium. Two checks to close out this balance are exhibits. They are Exhibit 20-P and Exhibit 21-P. Neither of the checks was endorsed by Plaintiff, though made payable to her. Exhibit 21-P was payable to all three, the Hiltsleys and H. M. Ryder. The Court determined that Ruth Hiltsley was a tenant in common in the proceeds in American Savings & Loan as shown by the passbook (Ex. 5-P). He gave the Defendant credit for all sums that she deposited into the account, held that the \$10,000.00 item was an asset of the heirs of Etta Wood, and then divided the difference between the tenants in common, M. J. Hiltsley and Ruth S. Hiltsley, since Ruth Hiltsley did not endorse the checks on the condo, and awarded her the judgment for \$4,924.66, her undivided one-half. Plaintiff submits that there can be no question about the accuracy and the propriety of the award to the heirs of Etta Wood and Ruth Hiltsley of the sums that are invested in the Defendant's condo.

Etta Wood died on the 20th of January, 1980 (Ex. 10, pg 248). The record of M. J. Hiltsley shows that \$10,000.00 in money market at American Savings & Loan was invested out of her \$30,000.00 (Ex. 10, pg 253). The records at American Savings & Loan show an account opened on the 14th of February, 1980 in the amount of \$12,000.00, Account No. 11-013277-9, is referred to on the Money Market Certificate (Ex. 4-P) in the face amount of \$15,259.78.

The account was changed into the name of M. J. Hiltsey and Defendant Hallalene M. Ryder on the 25th of August, 1982 as shown by Exhibit 19-P. This was the day before M. J. Hiltsey died. Court found that this account contained the \$10,000.00 of Etta Wood, money referred to in the ledger as being invested in the Money Market Certificate at American Savings & Loan. This is one of the items that the trial court held to be an asset of the estate of Etta Wood and the property of her heirs.

The documents support in every way the finding of the Court. There was no contrary evidence, and Defendant makes no claim that she in any way contributed to the American Savings & Loan Account No. 11-013277-9 represented by the Money Market Certificate.

Two accounts are shown to have been at Prudential Federal Savings & Loan. One account in the name of M. J. Hiltsey and Hallalene Ryder was opened on the 19th of July, 1979 and paid out on the 16th of July, 1981. This account is shown by Exhibits 22-P and 23-P. The account predates the receipt by M. J. Hiltsey of the Etta Wood assets and the payment does not correspond to any of the payments that are material to disposition of this matter. Court held that this item was not involved in the Etta Wood estate or gave no interest in it to the Plaintiff. What happened to the money upon payment is not known.

The other account was opened at Prudential Federal Savings & Loan on the 22nd of February, 1980 (R. 24-P) in the name of M. J. Hiltsey only. It was closed on the 28th of August, 1980

and is numbered 715-100,837-3. A check closing this account in the amount of \$16,161.74 was cashed on August 28, 1980 (Ex. 25-P). On August 28, 1980 the record shows that M. J. Hiltzley opened Account No. 715-100,837.3 (Ex. 26-P) in the name of himself and Ruth S. Hiltzley. This account was closed on February 26, 1981 (Ex. 26-P) by withdrawal of \$16,842.64. On February 25, 1981, M. J. Hiltzley opened Account No. 715-101,422-2 in his own name and the name of Hallalene Ryder (Ex. 29-P). The amount deposited in said account consisted of cash in the sum of \$157.36 and a check of \$16,842.64, for a total deposit of \$17,000.00 (Ex. 34-P). The check is Exhibit 35-P. An explanation of the savings loan transaction slip is on the face of the slip (Ex. 28-P), showing the closing of Account No. 715-101,422-2. The account opened on February 26, 1981 was numbered 715-101,139-6 (Ex. 28-P, Ex. 27-P).

Exhibit 3-P is the Money Market Certificate numbered 11647, which shows the transaction into M. J. Hiltzley and Hallalene Ryder's name of the \$17,000.00 account that was closed on the 25th of February, 1981.

After the death of Milton J. Hiltzley, the Defendant obtained from Prudential Federal Savings a Loan a transfer of the item in Account No. 715-101,422-2, which then contained the amount of \$18,363.65, into Account No. 715-101,716, which was taken in the name of herself and Fred Hansen (Ex. 31-P, Ex. 32-P). Affidavit on which the bank made its transfer is in Exhibit 36-P. Exhibit 37-P is Exhibit 37-P.

The Court found that the \$10,000.00 referred to in Exhibit 10, page 253, as in money market at PFS, is the money that eventually became Money Market Certificate 11646, which was the deposit plus earnings belonging to the heirs of Etta Wood.

The Money Market Certificate at Prudential Federal Savings & Loan, the American Savings & Loan Money Market Certificate, have not been disbursed by either of the savings institutions, but are held pending the outcome of this litigation. It is Plaintiff's position that the trial court, in his analysis of the savings accounts and the source of monies in the savings accounts and Money Market Certificate, was clearly supported by the documentary evidence and by the notations in the record of deceased M. J. Hiltsey. Defendant makes no claim that any of the monies deposited in the Prudential Federal Savings & Loan Money Market Certificate came from her or any contribution was made by any other party. Plaintiff Ruth Hiltsey concurs in the analysis of the trial court and submits that it is supported by uncontradicted, reliable and substantial evidence.

Clearly the evidence supports the trial court's Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decree that the \$10,000.00 investment in the condo, the American Savings & Loan Money Market Certificate, and the Prudential Federal Savings & Loan Money Market Certificate are items traceable to the estate of Etta Wood. The statement in the court's Memorandum Opinion (p. 20), reads as follows:

It seems clear to me that Milton must be considered as having received that \$30,000.00 in trust for Etta and this money was not his money to invest as he did and did not become his upon her death to give away or use for his own purposes. It is thus apparent that at least \$10,000.00 in each of the three accounts mentioned came from Etta's funds.

It is supported by clear, convincing and undisputed evidence.

The finding by the Court would classify Milton J. Hiltsley as a "conscious wrongdoer". This court has held in Park v. Zions First National Bank, et al, filed September 22, 1983, that such a wrongdoer may be held to restore the fund diverted and also pay all profits. The language of the court seems especially fitting in the facts of the present case:

Where a person by the consciously wrongful disposition of the property of another acquires other property, the person whose property is so used is not only entitled to hold the wrongdoer personally liable for the value of the property wrongfully disposed of but he is entitled as an alternative to the property so acquired. If the property so acquires is or becomes more valuable than the property used in acquiring it, the profit thus made by the wrongdoer cannot be retained by him; the person whose property was used in making the profit is entitled to it. Restatement of Restitution Section 202 comment c (1937).

The reasoning behind this rule has been stated thus:

If, however, the wrongdoer were permitted to keep the profit, there would be an incentive to wrongdoing, which is removed if he is compelled to surrender the profit. The rule which compels the wrongdoer to bear any losses and to surrender any profits operates as a deterrent upon the wrongful disposition of the property of others.

The Personal Representative of Milton J. Hiltsley is vitally interested in retrieving the property diverted from Etta

Wood's estate since the estate is liable for such diversion.

POINT II

DEFENDANT NOW HAS COLOR OF TITLE TO ASSETS OF PLAINTIFF AND ESTATE OF ETTA WOOD.

It is undisputed that there are assets to which Defendant presently has title and on which the court has determined a trust should be imposed in favor of the heirs of Etta Wood.

The Probate Code of the State of Utah, UCA 75-3-101, provides that upon the death of a person, his real and personal property devolves to his heirs. Upon the death of Etta Wood, the property that she owned then devolved to her heirs.

It is undisputed that the deceased Milton J. Hiltsley did not distribute the property received from Etta Wood to her heirs and did not make any attempt whatever to probate the estate of Etta Wood.

UCA 75-1-106, entitled "Effect of Fraud and Evasion", provides that if fraud is used to avoid or circumvent the provisions or purposes of the Probate Code, any person injured thereby may obtain appropriate relief against the perpetrator of the fraud or restitution from any person other than a bona fide purchaser benefiting from the fraud, whether innocent or not.

It is apparent that the Probate Code is intended to provide relief to people who are in the position of Plaintiff or who are in the position of the heirs of Etta Wood.

As has been set out in the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment of the court (Tr. 86-98), the mechanism for recognizing the interest of the heirs of Etta Wood was that the assets should be paid to the Personal Representative of Etta Wood. The alternative method proposed by Plaintiff at the trial level (Tr. 69-85) was a judgment in favor of the Personal Representative of Milton J. Hiltsley and a trust imposed on the proceeds for the benefit of the heirs of Milton J. Hiltsley. This proposal was objected to by the Defendant, who now appeals from the decision to give a direct judgment rather than impose a trust on the asset in the estate of Milton J. Hiltsley.

An ultimate effect of the procedures followed by the court or as proposed by Plaintiff would be the same. As the court now knows, there has been a Personal Representative appointed for the estate of Etta Wood and motion filed by Plaintiff's attorney to join the estate of Etta Wood in this action.

As Plaintiff reads the brief of Defendant, it is an objection to the court determining that there are assets subject to a trust in the estate of Milton J. Hiltsley which are in possession under claim of title by Defendant. A modification of the order of the court giving a direct judgment to the Personal Representative of Milton J. Hiltsley, then imposing a trust on the assets in favor of the estate of Etta Wood, should be a simple matter for this Court to order if that result is deemed appropriate.

The Findings and Conclusions of the trial court that the assets handled by deceased M. J. Hiltsley are trust assets, are supported by uncontroverted, substantial evidence. Plaintiff submits the evidence is undisputed. Certainly relitigation or retrial of this matter is not an efficient or necessary result which should be ordered by this Court.

POINT III

DEFENDANT IS BARRED FROM ATTEMPTING TO RELITIGATE THE OWNERSHIP OF THE ASSETS RECEIVED FROM M. J. HILTSLEY BY DOCTRINE OF EQUITABLE ESTOPPEL.

Defendant, in the trial of the matter, had every opportunity to litigate the question of the source of the assets that ultimately came into her possession and on which she had a record title. There is no claim that she made any contribution to the assets or that there were any of her assets commingled with the judgment in favor of the Plaintiff or the determination that there was a trust on the assets handled by M. J. Hiltsley which he received from his deceased sister, Etta Wood. Defendant had every opportunity to present any evidence of her interest in the assets or any evidence she might have relating to the use by M. J. Hiltsley of the assets of Etta Wood.

It is respectfully submitted that there is no evidence of any kind that the assets that were ultimately used and which came into the hands of Defendant were not assets of the estate of Etta Wood. The \$4,900.00 judgment that Plaintiff obtained

by reason of her tenancy in common relationship in the savings account at American Savings & Loan is clearly supported and undisputed and legally unassailable.

Clearly the law is that one tenant in common cannot dispose of another tenant in common's asset without the nonparticipating tenant in common consenting or being willing that her asset be used. It seems relatively undisputed that the Plaintiff, in her personal right, is entitled to a judgment of the \$4,900.00 interest in the condominium of Defendant.

As to the balance of the bank accounts, having had an opportunity to litigate and to present all evidence available on the ownership of the assets in her possession and on which she has record title, Defendant is now barred from relitigating this issue by the doctrine of equitable estoppel.

This Court, in a series of recent cases, has clearly and carefully set down the manner in which the doctrine of equitable estoppel prevents the relitigation of issues that have been litigated in a trial proceeding. In Wilde v. Mid-Century Insurance Co., Utah, 635 P.2d 417, this Court states the doctrine in the following language:

The doctrine of collateral estoppel governs the resolution of the issues in this case. The purpose of that doctrine is to prevent the relitigation of issues which a party has once actually litigated. As the doctrine was originally formulated, it required that the parties be the same in the first and second litigation. Mutuality of parties is no longer essential, however. This jurisdiction, following the landmark decision in Bernhard v. Bank

of America Nat'l Trust & Savings Assoc., 19 Cal.2d 807, 122 P.2d 892 (1942), dispensed with mutuality in collateral estoppel cases. Searle Bros. v. Searle, Utah, 588 P.2d 689 (1978).

Court set down the principles involved and necessary for the doctrine of equitable estoppel in the following language:

[2,3] To invoke the doctrine, it must be demonstrated (1) that the issue decided in the previous action was identical to that tried in the subsequent action; (2) that the issue was decided in a final judgment on the merits; and (3) that the issue in the first case was competently, fully, and fairly litigated by the party against whom the doctrine is invoked. Searle Bros. v. Searle, Utah, supra, at 691. See also Teitelbaum Furs, Inc. v. Dominion Ins. Co., 58 Cal.2d 601, 25 Cal.Rptr. 559, 375 P.2d 439 (1962). If these conditions are met, the party against whom the original judgment was rendered is bound, and so are those in privity with that party.

There has been an argument made in the past that a party not a litigant could not be bound by the doctrine of equitable estoppel since the party would not be objecting to the findings of the court had the issues been decided against such a party, and that the doctrine of mutuality prevents such a party from taking advantage of the doctrine of equitable estoppel.

In a subsequent case, the court again adhered to and upheld the doctrine of equitable estoppel, and specifically indicated the manner in which that doctrine works as far as parties who are strangers to a judgment and are the prevailing party. In Nielson v. Droubay, Utah, 652 P.2d 1293, the court made the following holding:

[2,3] In this jurisdiction we have abandoned the rule requiring mutuality of parties in collateral estoppel cases. The established rule is that a

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